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NADINE ALEC]A WILLIAMS,

Plaintiff,

\rc
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The Defendant:
Eor the Defendant:
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cr,ARK COUNTY, NEVADA
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BEFORE THE HONORABLE DIANE STEEL
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA MONDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2019

PROCEEDINGS

(THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 09:25:03)

THE COURT: Okay. On the Willi-ams matter, this is

case number 586291. Can I have appearances?

MR. TOTI: Your Honor, Frank Toti, bar number 5804,

here with the Plaintiff.

MR. ROBBINS: Kenneth Robbins, bar number 73512,

with Herman WilIiams.

THE COURT: Thank you. I'm appearing on behalf of

Judge Moss under Supreme Court order. She wasn't abl-e to be

here today, and I'm just a senior temporary judge on the

matter. I'm not here to change anything or to act as her

appeJ-1ate judge for anything she may have already done. Can

we proceed?

MR. TOTI: Yes.

MR. ROBBINS: This is Defendant's motion.

MR. TOTI: Yes.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. ROBBINS: So there's a previous order that the

chi-Idren are supposed to be in Dad's care. Mom has visitation

on Saturday, daytime vj-sitatj-on onIy. And that's due to as

a resuft of a previous CPS case, where Mom was found to have
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endangered the chil-dren.

THE COURT: Did that case go to any formal-

proceedi ng ?

(COUNSEL AND DEEENDANT CONFER BRIEELY)

MR. ROBBINS: Yes.

THE COURT: I cantt find one in the system.

MR. TOTI: It did not.

(COUNSEL AND DEFENDANT CONFER BR]EFLY)

MR. ROBBINS: And just so you know, I'm new to this

case. I just came in

THE COURT: Me, too.

MR. ROBBINS: -- on it. So some of the previous

facts aren't known to me. I bel-ieve there is a report,

however, were Mom was found to hit the chifdren wj-th a pipe.

THE COURT: Well, but they didn't proceed on j-t.

But for Some reason, we're aII fol-l-owing the direction of some

littl-e person who graduated wi-th a bachelor's degree in social

work. I I always find that to be really odd. Go ahead.

MR. ROBBINS: So Mom al-so has a hof iday schedule,

and during the Nevada Day visit, which was obviously in -- at

the end of October, Dad brought the chil-dren to Mom, and then

Mom kept the their daughter, AbigaiJ-. She's had Abigai-I

since that October l-ate October visit for Nevada Duy, and

has refused to return the chifdren the child back to Dad.
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Dad still has the boys, but she she refuses to bring the

Abigail- back to Dad.

THE COURT: What was interesting when I read through

the FMC report, Abigail didn't want to l-ive with her mother.

MR. ROBBINS: Correct. And then now they're making

a cfaim that Dad's been abusive, and that CPS is informing

them to keep Abigail.

THE COURT: How can they do that? OkaY.

MR. ROBBINS: I don't know. And that's why we're

here.

THE COURT: Uh-huh. And they didnrt open up a case.

MR. ROBBINS : Right . So it it ' s their cl-aim in

their opposition that CPS informed her don't return the child

to Dad, vioJ-ate -- which is clearly in violation of the

Court's orders, which CPS usuatly does not te1I part.ies to

violate court orders. They woul-d tell- you if there's an

issue, you need to file something with the Court --

THE COURT: Or they may do something if there's no

court

MR. ROBBINS: -- and ask for something to be changed

THE COURT: yet, but

MR. ROBBINS: Right. So we -- we find it hard to

believe that that's really what is happening.
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THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. ROBBINS: So Dad woul-d Iike the ch1ld returned

to his care immediately. In addition, there is the issue of

the tow truck. So Dad's a tow truck driver. He has the truck

in his possession. However and -- that was a an

order that is deferred until trial, that Dad wil-I keep the

truck.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. ROBBINS: However, he

got pulled over, and found out that

cancelJ-ed by Mom.

recently found out when he

the registration was

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. ROBBINS: As such, he is not able to work, and

not abl-e to to make a J-iving to sustain himself and care

for these children, because he's not abl-e to to work as a

tow truck driver. And they want to sdY, well-, he has another

truck that that can do the iob, but that's not true. He

does have another truck.

However, that truck can't be used to tow. If

when it is used to tow, it can create dents in the in the

vehicl-es that that he's towing ' So it -- we need this

registration to be renewed immediately, and apparently, she

had cancel-l-ed the regj-stration way back in Ju1y. And we came

to court or they came to court., I wasn't here, but they
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came to court subsequent to that, and didn't make she

didn't make any mention that, oh, by the way, yeah, You can

have the car I you're going to have the car I but there's no

registration on it. And she and he believes that she did

this strictJ-y to be mal-icj-ous towards him so that he wouldnrt

be abl-e to work.

He' s not abl-e to register the vehicl-e on his own

because i-t's it's in her name al-one. So we need her to

cooperate to get. this truck re-registered immediately so that

he can go back t.o work. Right now, he's not able to work at

al-1.

THE COURT: Can't he do it on his own, re-register

ir?

MR. ROBBINS: He can't

THE COURT: Why not?

MR. ROBBINS: He can't Because it's not in his

name.

THE COURT: Ah.

MR. ROBBINS: It's in her name afone.

THE COURT: Eunny, the things we do when we're in

1ove, when we still- trust each other.

MR. ROBBINS: And he fil-ed his motion on his own,

obviously, and I understand there's some issues in regards to

being able to find her in contempt, based on his pleadings,
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but at least we woul-d like these orders enforced. One other

thing, sorry, the Judge had ordered that they use the AppC1ose

app, which it doesn't work on Dad's phone. He's tried to

down1oad the app, and he can download it, but he canrt send

any messages or receive any messages.

She still texts him, though on the regular phone.

So any statements by her that, weJ-I, I coul-dn't comply with

sending him pictures or anything eJ-se is simply false, because

she still texts him using just regular texts, that anyone

wouJ-d use, outside of the app. So, you know, if I woufd

suggest they sign up for a different program possibJ-y, that

maybe is compatible wj-th his phone. But the AppClose app that

Judge Moss had ordered doesn't work.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ROBBINS: Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. I have a bunch of Unity CPS

notes and records up here, by the way, in case you see me

thumbing through. And it seems to be from a previous

something that was going on. I'm not seeing any case opened

ever, and I'm not seeing that anything is currently. But

maybe you guys cou1d take a look at it.

MR. TOTI: Your Honor, with regard to

THE COURT: Did you guys get a copy of this? No?

MR. ROBBINS: We have not.
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THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TOTI: With regard to the ol-dest child, Your

Honor, i-n this case Judge Moss has made clear previously that

based on the age of the child, the and some of the facts

and circumstances that have come out in this case, the Judge

was going to defer to that child with regards to

THE COURT: Why didnrt she put that in her order?

MR. TOTI: I'm not sure, Judge. But there was a

child interview

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. TOTI: and there --

THE COURT: And she adamantl-y did not want to l-ive

with her mom.

MR. TOTI: Correct.

THE COURT: So that's what I'm l-ooking at.

MR. TOTI: That's correct, Judge. And then afso/

there was supposed to be counsel-lng between my client and the

child. Now, that. took several- months to coordinate and

schedule. BasicaIly, Defendant just would not contact the

counselor or anything of that nature. That was final-1y

schedul-ed. However, by the time that happened, the child has

now returned to my cfient, and specifically wants to stay wj-th

my cl-ient.

THE COURT: When dj-d that happen?
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MR. TOTI: That happened in mid-October, Judge.

THE COURT: So in mid-October/ did your client file

a motion to resolve this issue before he dragged her into

court for a contempt order?

MR. TOTI: She did not, Judge. What happened

instead is, again, and Your Honor made t.he comment a moment

dgor but yes, Judge, sometimes the tail wags the dog, in that

CPS does have the authority and the ability to say, we're not

having any contact. Now, this does

THE COURT: WelI, we're going to open a case. So

then

MR. TOTI : WeIl, that. I s

THE COURT: you can't viol-ate a judge's order if

a -- if a worker has told you to do something without fi11ng a

motion to get back to the judge immediately.

MR. TOTI: WeIl, and the problem, Judge, is is that

as Your Honor 1s aware, CPS has now changed their policy,

whereas if there is one, quote, unquote, fit parent, they're

not going to open an active case.

THE COURT: That's fine.

MR. TOTI: And I I understand.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. TOTI : So

THE COURT: I don't have a problem with that.
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do.

MR. TOTI: so that's where we are now.

THE COURT: But they can't tel-l the Court what to

MR. TOTI: Correct.

THE COURT: And that's what they're doing when they

MR. TOTI: And I real-ize that. I've come up against

it several times in the Iast couple of years, and all I can

say is, is that that just continually i-s what they're

doing, and that.'s what their policy has been now, so.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TOTI: With regard to that, Judge, what we're

l-ooking to do is we are Iooking -- it I -- I bel-ieve

Judge Moss isn't here, I know you're not standing in her

shoes, so to speak --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. TOTI: -- what Judge Moss had no problem

basically saying to the Court or saying to the parties,

here's whaL we're going to do. We're going to have visitation

between the children and Mom. It's going to be for a couple

of hours on Saturday, let the kids get comfortable, things of

that nature.

And specifical-ly, because of the daughter's d9e, the

daughter was ki-nd of quasi having to go, but not really goj-ng
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to be forced to go. So now the situatj-on has flipped. We

would ask for a new chifd interview of al-l- the chi-ldren so we

can get a better idea of whatrs going on now, what's changed.

I mean, obviously, there is a significant change, and that

happened about a month-and-a-ha1f ago. So what we'd be

J-ooking for

on?

THE COURT: Vihat are you basing a significant change

Just the daughter not going back?

MR. TOTI: The daughter is now saying she wants to

spend --

THE COURT: Did something happen?

MR. TOTI: That's what the child has alleged to my

cl-ient, and as a resul-t of that, she I -- we would thi-nk

another child i-nterview would be most insightful to the Court.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. TOTI: I woufd afso ask that with regards to

their daughter, and their daughter only, that the order

pending trial be teen dlscretion. Okay? Again, this is

something that Judge Moss basically was giving the chi-ld to

begin with. I don't think anybody anticipated that it woul-d

be a complete 180 fJ-ip, but nonetheless, we would ask for that

same order that was basical-1y previously provided to the

Defendant.

Judge, with now, towards that end, we have this
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in our motion, and I would imagine, Judge, that a majority of

this will j ust have to wait f or the time of t.rial-, where this

all- started was that my client had her visitation on Saturday.

The ;udge put in the standard holiday schedul-e, the standard

holj-day schedu.l-e incl-uded a whole weekend for Nevada for

the Nevada Day hoJ-iday. Defendant was refusing to affow that

to to happen

THE COURT: Because the Judge clearly said no

overnights.

MR. TOTI: Wel-l, but she al-so just put in

THE COURT: In the order, she said it, whether she

said it out loud on the bench.

MR. TOTI: What she did -- again, Judge, she gave

she gave my cJ-ient a specified visitation

THE COURT: And a hoJ-iday p1an.

MR. TOTI: And a holiday plan. And --

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. TOTI: So we were just fol-l-owing the schedul-e.

I -- I appreciate that argument, but that was something that

coul-d have been brought to the court. Regardless, okay, that

is about the time when everything changed. The child has made

severaf things said -- made several- comments to my client.

They were in my oppositlon and countermotion.

And it it's troubfing if true, and obviously CPS
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had something to do with this, as we.l-l-, and bel-ieved the child

to some extent, because that was when the CPS worker said,

don't put the chil-d back in Dad's care, until- until further

ordered. So that's basicalJ-y where we are with this whole

idea or notlon regarding contempt and visitation. We have a

teen chil.d that is basically saying, I want to act as I

pJ-ease. And again

THE COURT: That never happens.

MR. TOTI: I'm not sure if that's -- weJ-I, and I

get that, Judge. And -- and -- and like I said, Judge Moss

has routinel-y been, and in in this case, has routinely

empowered children around this chil-d's age to have a

significanL say in what kind of contact and visitation she'Il

have wi-th both parents. So that's what we're looking for.

Your Honor, with regard to the truck, before the

parties came to court, my client. was attempting to retrieve

the truck from the Defendant. He refused to glve it to her.

So as a resul-t of that,she did cancel the registration. It

was before we were in court. The order of the Court was

Defendant can keep the truck, pending trial-

THE COURT: Does she need it for transportation?

MR. TOTI: She cannot af ford to l-ive and to pay thi-s

truck, and to afso have to pay for another vehicfe.

THE COURT: But now that he doesn't have a lob
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because she took the truck, he can't pay for it, either?

MR. TOTI: He -- he has a job, Judge. He has a job,

and he's working --

THE COURT: Does he need that truck?

MR. TOTI: That's what they are af l-e9ing, but we

believe that he does not, and we believe that he has another

vehicle

THE COURT: So you want to rol-I the dice on him

havi-ng the money?

MR. TOTI: What I would say, Judge, at the very

feast is if that I mean, this is obviousfy -- it's a

community asset. We don't

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. TOTI: -- have an issue there. If if if

the DefendanL wants to util-ize the truck pending trial, then

he can register the vehicle. We'fI provide the information.

He can register the vehicle, and he can pay for the vehicl-e.

If he wants to util-ize it, he should have to pay for it is the

argument.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. TOTI: And then, Judge, wi-th regards to the

parenting app, I mean, we've been through this for months and

months and months. My client finally did say to the

Defendant, okay, fine, 1et's not use the AppClose app, Iet's
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use TalkingParents. She sent him that information, as wel-I.

He has not signed up for Tal-kingParents. So there is a

TalkingParents invite pending for the Defendant. He hasn't

signed up for that, either.

THE COURT: Because he's waiting for the Judge to

say something.

MR. TOTI: I suppose

THE COURT: He's going by the Judge technical stuff,

and --

MR. TOTI: I get that.

THE COURT: she's going by the life experience

things.

MR. TOTI: I get that. But again, for months and

months and months, we're being told -- and -- and this goes

back to March, Judge. This doesn't even go back to the August

hearing. This goes back to the previous hearj-ng where the

judge said, util-ize AppClose. We're talking about nine

months, and Defendant hasn't done anything towards that.

THE COURT: And she hasn't cal-led him on the carPet

in front of the Judge, either.

MR. TOTI : Wel-l-, she di-d --

THE COURT: Because they don't know what to do.

MR. TOTI: She did in the August hearing.

THE COURT: They're on the j-r own.
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MR. TOTI: Yeah. She dld in the August hearing,

Judge, and that was when the Court reiterated that he had to

si-gn up for it immediately, and he still hasn't done it. So

again, if the argument, and I've never heard this up until

now, but okay. If Defendant has this special phone, this one

in a mill-lon phone t.hat doesn't all-ow AppClose Lo work on his

phone, that.'s f ine. But my cl-ient al-so sent TalkingParents.

We woul-d ask that immediateJ-y sign up and accept the invite on

TalkingParents, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. That it?

MR. TOTI: That's it, Judge.

THE COURT: Any re

MR. ROBBINS: Yeah, ;ust a couple things. As far as

any delay in the therapist, Mom had provided informatlon to

Dad how to contact the therapist, and she gave him the wrong

information.

(COUNSEL AND DEFENDANT CONFER BRIEELY)

MR. ROBBINS: Oh, sorry. She gave the therapist the

wrong information on how to contact Dad. So that was the

reason that was the reason for a delay.

As far as having the child re-interviewed or just

giving this 15 year old broad discretion to sdY, I want to be

wherever I want to be, I mean, since the end of October, Dad

hasn't even had phone contact with the chil-d. And I highJ.y
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doubt it's the child saying, I just don't want anything to do

with Dad aII of a sudden, now that I've been with Mom and she

refused to to return the child.

THE COURT: This was the child that was hi-t?

MR. ROBBINS: Right. Dad has had no contact

whatsoever. And so now, two months nearJ-y have gone by where

the chil-d's been exclusively in Mom's care, which Mom

obviously has issues with Dad, and who knows what she's

filling the chi-Id's head with about Dad. And the so now

we're supposed to re-interview her after two months where

she's had 100 percent of the time?

And so we object to having her re-intervi-ewed. We

wish that the order be maintained, that the child be returned

to Dad j-mmediately, and that her day time visitation be kept

intact..

As far as the vehicfe goes, there's only four months

left on the l-oan of the vehicl-e. Dad can take over the

payment, but we need Mom's cooperati-on to register the

vehicl-e. He is not able to reglster the vehicl-e on his own.

He tried. He went to the DMV and tried to have the vehicfe

registered --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ROBBINS: -- again, so that he can work. He

he's not able to work --
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THE COURT: Got it.

MR. ROBBINS: -- without it.

THE COURT: AIl right. Here's where we are. I'm

going to phrase my statements carefully so that I can really

capture what's going on, and maybe get your attention as

parents. You can spend hundreds of thousands of doll-ars going

with the technlcality of an order, instead of the spirit of

the order.

I think there comes a t j-me where you put on your I 'm

a regular person hat and say, okay, this ls what needs to be

done. The TalkingParents and I don't ever order any of

that stuff, but since Judge Moss did order i-t, I'm not going

to rescind it. But I will say that you t.ry the TalkingParents

if the other one doesn't work. Give that a try. Unless you

have a fl-ip phone that doesn't do anything. If you've got a

smart phone, fj-gure out how to get that. done. That's number

one.

Number two, I was very, when I was trying to read

what was going on here, disturbed that Mother was keeping the

child overnights and Judge Moss said no. And then she didn't

file anything, made hj-m come to court. So and I know that

that's just a I don't know what to do situatlon, and I don't

want to run r-nto court and l-ook l-ike a crybaby all the time,

because then the Judge will get mad at me. Don't worry about
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that. The Judge orders something, and you can I t comply, or

you feel like it's now become inappropriate, you need to get

back to court. Okay?

The two of you have four chil-dren, and a long

lifetime together. And you real-ly shouldn't be in this war

mode. You really should just see where the paths are going,

and be amicable about i-t in respect for the long life that you

have had together, and see if you can't get this thing

settfed. It's kind of counterproductive to beat each other

into the ground, and then expect the children to respect bot.h

of you.

Because they're going to pick a team. That's what

they do. And then event.ually, Mom is going to l-et her have

her driver's permit, and yourre not, so she's going to want to

be with Mom. And t.hen you're going to say, wel-l-, she can

drive, I'm going to give her a car, and then she's going to

want to be with Dad.

And then Mom's going to sdy, welJ-, I want her to go

to the prom and you don'L want her to go with this particul-ar

boy, and now and the and the chil-d's in charge already.

She's already deciding how to get what she wants with the

parent who wi-lI give it to her for whatever reason. And

that's what you guys are confronting.

Now, if you keep al-ong this same line, you've got a
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teenaged girl out there who's going to start doing things you

don't want her to do. You're going to have that, because

she's going to be hoJ-ding you both hostage. So be very, very

cognizant of this age time frame.

I'm comfortable doing the teen discretion, but as

J-ong as -- between now and trial. But she needs to make some

contact with Dad. No, I'm just saying she needs to. Even if

it's just by phone. You need to she needs to do that.

You ' re the mom. Huh?

THE PLAINTIEF: I've I've she has her phone,

and she has her dad's number, and I've asked her on multi-ple

occas ions

THE COURT: Tel-l her that the Judge said to.

THE PLAINTIEF: Okay.

MR. TOTI: I'l-l- I'11 explain it to you.

THE COURT: He'lI talk to you about it l-ater on.

Just say hi, good morning. I'm not asking you that you and

your daughter get into it on the phone. I'm just -- how are

you doing, baby, that kind of thing. A11 right? Until you

get back to court. I

MR. TOTI : And, Judge, towards that end, wi-th

regards to the idea of parenting and things of that nature,

obviously, the overwhelming majority of the child's items are

at Dad' s residence.
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THE COURT: Yeah, they're going to stay there.

MR. TOTI: Okay. Okay.

THE COURT: They're going to stay there.

MR. TOTI: Understood, Judge.

THE COURT: He has custody. If she needs an item or

two, she can come and get it and then bring it back, but I'm

not whol-esafe moving the child

MR. TOTI: f was

THE COURT: -- between now and trial-.

MR. TOTI: Understood, Judge.

THE COURT: To the extent that there are contempt

matters in front of us today, where one of you has violated a

court order, technically or otherwise, because you thought

that was what it said, I'm going to continue that over to the

trial- where we would actual-Iy be taking testimony. So if you

guys don't resolve this between now and then, that will be on

the tabl-e, and you'IJ- need to bring your evidence along those

fines. We haven't run out discovery time yet, I take it?

MR. TOTI: I think we have, Judge.

THE COURT: When does discovery end?

MR. TOTI: Let me l-ook at the schedul-e.

THE COURT: Is there l-ike a trial- motion or

something here

MR. TOTI : That' s what f 'm --
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THE COURT: that she

MR. TOTI: I'm looking for now, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TOTI: The discovery closes January 6th.

THE COURT: So you still- have some tlme. I'm

willing to even is that a Monday, or that's a Friday. So

I'm wj-lJ-ing to put it. out one more week, just to make sure

that you can capture everything.

With regard to the car, maram, you undid it, you

need to fix that, and put it back j-nto into working order.

And you need to make the payments on it.. If you need it for

your job, you need to make the payments on it. She canrt

af f ord to do that. Or the it's all going to be f orecJ-osed

oor you guys are going to lose everythlng. So is the car

upside down right now?

THE PLAINTIFF: No, I have been making the payments,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE PLAINTIEF: It's just that my current vehicle is

upside down.

THE COURT: Your what?

THE PLAINTIFF: My current vehicl-e is upside down.

THE COURT: That's okay.

MR. TOTI: That's why I said she coul-dn't af ford
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both, Judger so.

THE COURT: I understand.

MR. TOTI: We will provide the ability for the

Defendant to pay for the registration and then pay for the

vehicle

THE COURT: Rlght.

MR. TOTI: -- between now and trial.

THE COURT: Did you hear that.? Because your cl-ient

was tal- klng t.o you .

MR. ROBBINS: Sorry.

THE COURT: He's going to make provision so that he

can register the vehicle, get it paid for, and continue making

the payments until- trial-. rt's only a coupre of months, so it
shouldn't be any big thing. I don't see any child support

MR. TOTI: Nothing was ordered --
THE COURT: award here yet.

MR. TOTI: Judge.

THE COURT: f don't

expenses and no income. I don

the kind of dol_l_ars that woufd

you're going to have to real_Iy

J-itt1e bit, because can't keep

you guys been married?

THE DEFENDANT: Eifteen years.

see a l-ot of stuf f . I see huge

't see either one of you making

cover even your expenses. So

sl-ide back on your lifestyle a

you going t.here. How long have
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THE COURT: Okay. Is there a request for spousal

support in this action?

MR. TOTI: I don't befieve so.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ROBBINS: Yes.

THE COURT: There j_s? She's requesting you to pay

spous a1

MR. ROBBINS: He said --

THE COURT: -- support? You're requestj-ng her to

pay you spousal support.? Does she make more money than you?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Ohr oo. I guess I was looking at

the wrong thing. r see here there's a gross monthry income

big and little to Mom, and nothlng to Dad. Okay. Because he

you donrt have a job? You got fired?

THE DEFENDANT: No, I

MR. ROBBINS: Right now, he's

THE DEFENDANT: do subcontracting work for

Copart. If I don't work, I don't get paid. I get paj-d by the

cars. So every zone is different.

THE COURT: I see. AIl right. Well, work that
you got a couple of months. I'm not going to be making any

changes in in support at this point j_n tlme. you've got

until- Eebruary -- the 22nd? January -- end of January?
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MR. TOTI: It's early February, Judge.

THE COURT: EarJ-y February? Okay.

MR. ROBBINS: (Indiscernlble) .

THE CLERK: February 4th is their trial-.

THE COURT: January 22nd ts the

MR. TOTI : Cal-endar cal-l- .

THE COURT: calendar call_.

THE CLERK: Yeah. That's

THE COURT: Yourve got 30 days, really, t.echnica11y.

30 five weeks before you guys are going to go to trial.

Unl-ess CPS opens a case. If they do, then there

will be a stay of everything. I'm going to l-eave the trial-

where it is at this juncture, because I thj_nk the sooner you

guys are abl-e to resol-ve this, the better. You have two

attorneys who know basical-l-y how these things play out. They

know the judge that's going to making this final determination

cal-l-. It wou1d probabJ-y benefit you guys tremendousJ-y to meet

somehow and make some accommodations and stipul_ations, such if

you get to the custody and the divorce action, actualJ-y to

resolve it. But failing that, then you guys are going to be

stuck with attorney fees.

It Iooks J-ike, before you fost your job, so to

speak, the ability to do a job, whichever, however you want to

capture it, what was your monthly income?
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THE DEEENDANT: 4, 000.

THE COURT: Okay. And then woul-d you be able to

resume that once you get the registration back?

THE DEFENDANT: I was making 15 to 1600 a week.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEEENDANT: It dropped to 1,000, 900

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: -- because I can't tow -- like, they

give you

THE COURT: I get it.

THE DEFENDANT: crash cars, I can pick up with

that truck.

THE DEFENDANT: Cars that's not hit at all

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: I can't pick up wi-th that. truck.

f'm ruinrng the bumpers. I go

THE COURT: Got it.

THE DEFENDANT: (indiscernibfe) for 2079 the

other day.

THE COURT: I understand. Got it.

THE DEFENDANT: Because I messed up.

THE COURT: Okay. So I'm going to step back just

one order, Mr. Toti. I want her to pay for the registration.

MR. TOTI: Okay.

D-15-586291-D WTLLTAMS 1211612019 TRANSCRIPT(SEALEO)

vERBATTM REPORTTNG & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

26

411



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

B

9

10

11

t2

13

l4

15

L6

71

18

19

20

27

22

23

24

THE COURT: She cancel-led it, she can pay for it.

But he'fl- pay for the truck. Okay? Did I cover everything?

MR. TOTI: Yes, Judge.

(COUNSEL AND DEEENDANT CONEER BRIEELY)

(COURT AND CLERK CONFER BR]EFLY)

THE COURT: If you coul-d settfe this, it's probably

in your financial best interests, because then you don't have

that day or two of trial- that you may be facing at however

many dollars an hour that's going to cost you, so work on

that.

MR. TOTI: Thank you, Judge.

MR. ROBBINS: And, Your Honor

THE COURT: I woul-d say this, and I don't know if

Judge Moss has al-ready said i_t, but 10 years of marriage,

we're looking at a spousal support legitimate request. So put

that in the hopper, as you guys do your negot.iations.

MR. ROBBINS: Can we get a date of when this truck

shoul-d be registered by?

THE COURT: How soon do you t.hink you can get it
done? Two weeks?

THE PLAINTIFE: Two weeks.

THE COURT: Two weeks. No? He -- hers not working

the whol-e time you're not doing it.

THE PLAINTIFE: He's not -- he's not being truthful,
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Your Honor. He's

THE COURT: Well, ma'am, that' 1l- come up at trial-.

THE PLAINTIFF: I can't af f ord to regist.er it until-

the next two weeks.

THE COURT: He has zero income.

THE PLAINTIFF: Your Honor, I I realIy can't

THE COURT: You need to prove that in court whenever

it comes, yeah.

THE PLAINTIFF: I -- I can't

THE COURT: Hol-d on.

MR. ROBBINS: If i-t's if it's a matter of not

wanting to pay for it, he'lJ- pay for the registration. He

just needs it done immediately.

THE COURT: Okay. He' l-l- do it lmmediately.

MR. ROBBINS: But we need her to

THE COURT: We'l-l- look at whether or not she has to

reimburse hi-m.

MR. TOTI: Your Honor, we'J-I -- we'If get a1l that

informati-on, we'l-l- get them the the the prJ-ce, and then

they can pay

THE COURT: Al-l right.

MR. TOTI: and we get it regi-stered immediateJ-y.

THE COURT: Okay. You both have counsel. Are you

unbundl-ed?
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MR. ROBBINS: IIm retained for the trial-.

THE COURT: Retained for Lriaf. And you're

ret a i-ned?

MR. TOTI: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: You guys see if you can grind this to

get these people

MR. TOTI: Sure.

THE COURT: amic as easily as possible out of

this circumstance.

MR. TOTI: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. ROBBINS: So can we have it registered by this

wee kend ?

THE COURT: He's going to regJ-ster it, so yes.

MR. ROBBINS: But he can't register

MR. TOTI: Judge, we will go to the DMV --

THE COURT: Yes, by Friday --

MR. TOTI : We ' f l- do all of that, ye s .

THE COURT: By Eriday. Today's Monday. By

Wednesday, get him all the stuff he needs.

MR. TOTI: Of course, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ROBBINS: He can't go there and do i-t himself .

He's tried.

THE COURT: By Wednesday.
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MR. ROBBINS: Yeah.

THE COURT: They're going to make the arrangements.

MR. ROBBINS: Okay.

MR. TOTI: Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Al-1 right? That gives you t.wo days.

(PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 9:54:49)

ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and

correctl-y transcribed the digi-ta1 proceedings in the

above-ent.itled case to the best of my ability.

/s/ Nita Painter
Nita Painter
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 22, 2O2O

PROCEEDINGS

(THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 09:10:46)

THE COURT: We're going to do Williams, case D-

58629I. Counsel, your appearances and bar numbers?

MR. TOTI: Your Honor, Erank Totj-, bar number 5804,

for the Plaintiff.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. ROBBINS: Good morning. Kenneth Robbins, bar

number 13512, unbundled, with Herman Will-iams.

THE COURT: One unbundl-ed? Okay. This is a just

our cal-endar cafl. Let's see. Can you lawyers telf me which

cl-asses each of the parents have -- have completed. And then

the second issue i-s Donna Gosnel-l.

MR. TOTI: Your Honor, with regard to the parenting

cl-asses, ily cl-ient just finished COPE, and that was the final-

thing she needed to do. So the ABCs and the oh, I'm sorry.

She has a couple of makeup classes to do with ABC.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TOTI: She's done with COPE, and what. was the

other one?

THE COURT: The is it the high confl-ict

MR. TOTI: Hi-gh conflj-ct

D-15-586291-D WILLTAMS O112212020 TRANSCRIPT(SEALED)

VERBATTM REPORTTNG & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

2

440



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

B

9

10

11

72

13

14

15

T6

l1

18

I9

20

2t

22

23

24

THE COURT: onfine class?

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes.

MR. TOTI: And thatrs done, as well.

THE COURT: She she has to do that one?

THE PLAINTIFF: No, I'm finished.

THE COURT: f 'm -- I --

MR. TOTI: No, she has no high conflict she's

done with

THE COURT: She has to do high conflict

MR. TOTI: -- high confl-ict. She ;ust has a couple

of make ups for the

THE PLAINTIFF: ABC

THE COURT: ABCs.

MR. TOTI: -- ABCs.

THE COURT: WeIl, she's supposed to do Triple P. Or

that is the Triple P --

THE PLAINTIFF: No, the fast cl-ass, Your Honor, is

on Eriday.

THE COURT: Okay. How about Dad?

MR. ROBBINS: I thlnk he's completed all of them.

We filed --

THE COURT: According to my notes

MR. ROBBINS: -- certificates

THE COURT: -- he has. Yes. Okay. Mr. Toti/ was
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Mom supposed to arrange Donna Gosnell-?

MR. TOTI: Your Honor, back in the -- back at the

tj-me that was ordered, we were having a hard time

communicating with the Defendant to coordinate and arrange

that.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. TOTI: Donna Gosnefl was finally contacted by

the Defendant. However, Judge, what happened immed-i-ateIy

there don't forget that the purpose of the Donna Gosnell

counsellng was between my client and the oldest femafe child.

THE COURT: Fifteen, Abigail.

MR. TOTI: And --

THE COURT: Correct?

MR. TOTI: she was having no contact wlth Mom.

WelI, during the period of time before Donna Gosnel-f came in,

thj-ngs have have f lipped, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yeah. Abigail's living wit.h Mom and the

three other kids are living with Dad.

MR. TOTI: Correct. So so the the who1e point

of i-t was to repai-r the relationship between Mom and the

ol-dest child

THE COURT: Oh --

MR. TOTI: and obviously --

THE COURT: It's moot now.
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MR. TOTI: so and, Judge, and that

THE COURT: She's to have teenage discretion.

MR. TOTI: Correct.

THE COURT: If she conti-nues to see her dad.

MR. TOTI: Yeah. You gave teenage discretion

MR. ROBBINS: And she hasn't.

MR. TOTI: -- but there has been, I don't think, any

contact. I think that my cl-ient i-ndicat.es that

THE COURT: It looks like

MR. TOTI: the chi.l-d has texted her dad a few

t j-mes, but there 's been no visitation.

THE COURT: Okay. WeII, therers an issue there. So

shet s

MR. TOTI: And, Judge, what. we wou.l-d be -- what we'd

be Iooking to do as a resul-t of aII of these things, is we

woul-d be asking for either a new chi-Id interview, or for a

guardian ad l-item to be appointed so Your Honor can get some

insight as to the changing dynamics of the chi1dren in this

CASE .

THE COURT: I can do that, but Dad hasn't seen

Abigaj-l- since when?

MR. ROBBINS : S j-nce Nevada Day.

THE COURT: And Mom has t.o encourage her wj-th

teenage discretion not to just completely cut Dad off.
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MR. TOTI: Mom has not. Mom has encouraged the

child --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TOTI: to text Dad and communicate with Dad,

and she's

THE COURT: He should go with Gosne11, then, to work

on the rel-ationship between him and his daughter. Yeah.

MR. ROBBINS: We have no

THE COURT: I do finger pointing here, but

MR. ROBBINS: Yeah.

THE COURT: i-t sounds like he needs to do the

therapy with Gosnell and -- and -- for him and hls daughter.

MR. ROBBINS: WeII

THE COURT: They're sharing -- are they sharing

joint of the other three?

MR. TOTI: No, Judge.

MR. ROBBINS: No.

MR. TOTI : The chil-dren

THE COURT: Dad is

MR. TOTI: are primarily -- the t.hree younger are

primarily with the Defendant -

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TOTI: and again, that's why we were J-ooking

for an for a -- for an updated --
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THE COURT: AII right. These parents are not goj-ng

to be able to flgure out -- we are going to trial- on February

4th at 1:30, so you're stack one.

MR. TOTI: Okay.

THE COURT: And you have your lists -- pretrial-

memos, witnesses, exhibits?

MR. TOTI: No. I don't think there's going to be

any witnesses other than the parties, Judge. The pretrial

my pretrial- memorandum has not been filed. I was hoping to

get to it by Eriday.

THE COURT: I can give you until Friday. How about

you, Mr. Robbins?

MR. ROBBINS: Same.

THE COURT: Okay. List your so no surprises

here, just the parents probably going to testify? No family

members, or

MR. ROBBINS: Your Honor, I think we had some of his

family members on ou

THE COURT: Can you

MR. ROBBINS: -- witness Iist.

THE COURT: -- give us a heads uP, and I usual-ly

Ij-ke only --

(COUNSEL AND DEFENDANT CONFER BRIEFLY)

THE COURT: They're not going to say the same thi-ng,

D-15-586291-D WILLTAMS 0112212020 TRANSCRIPT(SEALED)

vERBATTM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

7

445



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

o

9

10

11

72

13

L4

15

),6

1,1

18

19

20

2I

22

24

are they, about his parenting? They got to be different

testimony.

(COUNSEL AND DEFENDANT CONFER BRIEELY)

THE COURT: Sister? And who el-se?

MR. ROBBINS: Pl-ai-ntiff rs mother.

THE COURT: And the maternal grandmother? Okay.

Mom has to any heads up?

MR. TOTI: No, Judge. We just

THE COURT: It's just -- Mom just wants to do the

Mom hersel-f. Okay. So the pretriafs are due by Friday, close

of business . Your l-ist of w j-tnesses, exhibit.s .

MR. TOTI: And again, Judge, is there an ability to

have something updated in regards to the children? That was a

very important piece of the case, the child int.erview, when

Your Honor set in the original- visitat.ion schedufe. But quite

obviously

THE COURT: Mom's only on day visits two days a week

MR. TOTI: Momrs onJ-y on day visits

MR. ROBBINS: One

MR. ROBBINS: -- with the three younger.

THE COURT: One day.

MR. TOTI: Origi-nal1y, Judge, it was only with the

three younger and -- and the daughter was on teen discretion.
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THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TOTI: But like I said, it's now flopped 100

percent. I

THE COURT: How's the visits going with the young

ones? They fine?

THE PLAINTIFE: When I do get them, because he

hasn't been brinqing them --

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE PLAINTIEE: -- when I do get them, they wil-l go

wel-I, and sometimes at the end, they just start a fight and

get upset, and just so it last week was totally fine.

We had no issues

THE COURT: Maybe they need to get counseling.

THE PLA]NTIEF: I

THE COURT: Family counseling for you and those

three Iittle ones.

THE PLAINTIFF: I -- I think so, Your Honor,

because it's l-ike

THE COURT: SO

THE PLAINTIFF: it's it's theY're

conflicted, and, you know, I -- I can see that, and --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE PLAINTIFE: so I -- I real-Iy do try to tal-k

to them, but
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THE COURT: So these parents want to go to trial-

based on what we have currentl-y today?

MR. TOTI: It

MR. ROBBINS: WeII, I don't mind if we can do a

child interview for the daughter right away. Because we have

no idea why --

THE COURT: Have they ever been interviewed at al-I?

MR. ROBBINS: The daughter was interviewed --

MR. TOTI: (Indj-scernible) , Judge.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. ROBBINS: The daughter was interviewed, and she

said she wanted to l-ive with Dad, and then one visit with Mom,

and now she wants nothing to do with Dad. So we need to know

why --

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. ROBBINS: -- and we've never gotten an

lndi cat ion

THE COURT: Schedule it.

MR. ROBBINS: -- as to why.

THE COURT: Not. yes, the the FMC child

interviews woul-d be admissibl-e at trial-, even though they're

not recorded. So you both understand that, you stipulate that

MR. ROBBINS: Yes, Judge.
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THE COURT: -- we wou]d admit that as a Court's

seal-ed exhibi-t, and you don't want to include the other three,

because Momts

MR. TOTI: I -- I would want aII chil-dren

interviewed, Judge. Just for

THE COURT: A11 right. Probably makes sense

MR. TOTI: an update because they were all

interviewed initially.

THE COURT: Have all four kids interviewed, and get

that done right away. So if trial's February 4th, I need a

marathon interview. So you need to make a phone caII

downstairs and get them in right away. Four kids, just an

interview.

I coul-d Ieave Donna Gosnell i-n pJ-ace so Mom needs it

for the three kids, and Dad needs it for the daughter. Yeah.

I don't know what the custody will be like, come February 4th.

If they want to keep that trial date, we'1I start the trial-

then. Yeah. But the interview might shed some light

MR. TOTI: That's what f was thinklng, Judge. And I

know Your Honor

THE COURT: and maybe the parents can talk, and

MR. TOTI: -- Your Honor, what is

THE COURT: Yeah?
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MR. TOTI: if if we if we forego the

February 4th date, what -- what el-se do you have?

THE COURT: I'm kind of out to Ju1y, but I can find

a date, if you give me a month, what month you want to go.

Give it llke another 90 days of counsel-ing and therapy? I'l-f

see if I can squeeze you in somewhere. That woufd be

February, March, April -- so it's like early May or l-at.e

Apri1. Let's see what I have. Let me see. Maybe I have

MR. ROBBINS: Your Honor, we don't mi-nd pushing out

the triaI, but

THE COURT: I can fill- that one with something eJ-se.

MR. ROBBINS: -- he still doesn't have the truck.

THE COURT: WeIl, it's just a calendar ca-l-l- today.

MR. ROBBINS: Or the the plates for the truck,

rather.

THE COURT: Is it an emergency? Does he need it for

work?

MR. ROBBINS: Yeah. Yeah, it's a tow truck.

(COURT AND CLERK CONEER BRIEFLY)

THE COURT: Okay. What's goi-ng on with the truck,

Mr. Toti-?

MR. TOTI: I'm asking my cl-ient now. She says it's

been registered --

THE COURT: It's been registered. Okay.
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(COUNSEL AND PLAINTIEE CONFER BRIEELY)

MR. TOTI: And, Your Honor, what I'1I do is let

me make it real-J-y easy. I'ff have my client bring the plates

to my office, and we'II get them to Defendant's Counsel's

office by Friday.

THE COURT: Okay.

(COURT AND CLERK CONFER BRIEFLY)

THE COURT: Maybe the parents want to wait until-

after Memorial Day, when the klds get out of school. Or let

me see.

(COURT AND CLERK CONFER BRIEFLY)

MR. ROBBINS: I have a -- I have a day two with you,

I think i-t's in June that's going to settl-e, I'm pretty

confident.

THE COURT: What's the case name?

MR. ROBBINS: SaIazar.

THE COURT: I'11 have to look. You know their first

name ?

MR. ROBBINS : Juan Salazar' s my cl-ient . I don't

know the other one's name.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. ROBBINS: I think she has a different last name.

(COURT AND CLERK CONEER BRIEFLY)

THE COURT: Let me see. Because we have a l-ot of
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Juan Sal-azars in our system. I dontt know which one he is.

Do you know the date, June something, or if we coul-d search?

MR. ROBBINS: June, I feel fike it was June.

THE COURT: April, May, June. Okay. So starting on

June lst, there is it's not that week. I don't think it's

that week.

(COURT AND CLERK CONFER BRIEFLY)

THE COURT: Is that a ful-I day or a half day?

MR. ROBBINS: It's a half. It was a it was a

second day of the trial.

THE COURT: Oh, are they thinking of settling?

Okay.

(ph)?

MR. ROBBINS: I think so.

(COURT AND CLERK CONFER BR]EELY)

THE COURT: Salazar, found i-t. With Carmen Amon

MR. ROBBINS: Yes.

THE COURT: That's a stack --

THE CLERK: One.

THE COURT: one but it's Tuesday, June 9th. I --

THE CLERK: (Indiscernible)

THE COURT: Yeah, click on it. Okay. It's day two

of triaI, but Mr. Robbins says they're thinking of settling.

I can give you June 9th, i-f Mr. Robbi-ns is golng to settfe

o-15-586291-D WILLIAMS 0112212020 TRANSCRIPT(SEALED)

VERBAT|M REPORTING & TMNSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

L4

452



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

9

10

11

I2

13

t4

15

I6

l1

18

19

20

2I

22

23

24

that in the middle of trial- . Coul-d put you there.

MR. ROBBINS: I'm -- Irm pretty confident. I'm just

waiting on a cal-I back from Carmen Amon.

THE COURT: Yeah. WeI}, you've got your cal-endar

cleared for that day. Mr. Toti, June 9th?

MR. TOTI: I can make June 9th work.

THE COURT: We' l-1 put you t.here, stack one. Okay.

JA, do a -- here, write yourself a note, do another trial set

amended trial setting order.

MR. ROBBINS: Do we start at 9:00 or 9:30, Judge?

THE COURT: Those are 1: 30. It's a haff day.

MR. ROBBINS: Okay.

THE COURT: That's an afternoon. June 9th, 1:30.

Okay. Yeah, since you want to push it out to June, and you

don't know maybe your witnesses, I can do that like a month

before tria1, or

MR. ROBBINS: Okay.

THE COURT: Or you want to know who your witnesses

are.

I4R. TOTI: I would say -- how about witnesses and

exhibits due by May 1? That's 30 days.

THE COURT: Yeah. Thatrs fine with me. But as soon

as you find out who your witnesses will be, please discfose it

right away. Okay? May l, pretrials due. So you don't have
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to do them by Eriday.

MR. TOTI: Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: I'f .I give you until May 1st. So we'l-l-

.l-et them -- l-et the family do counseling for Eebruary, March,

ApriJ-, May, and then early June, we go to trial. And then we

you want another cal-endar caII, or just it is what it is,

or the parents will- see where they're at?

MR. TOTI: No, I --

THE COURT: You know, by the end of the school year.

MR. TOTI: think once we get the child interview,

we'Il get a caIl, so as long as we just qet notice of the

chi,ld interviews

THE COURT: I'fl- just have you pick up the

i-ntervi-ews.

MR. TOTI: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay. We -- we got something schedul-e?

Child interviews?

THE CLERK: Yes. January 29th at 4:00 p.m.

THE COURT: January 29Lh, 4:00 p.m.

MR. TOTI: What's that one, Judge?

THE COURT: You're the children are going

downstairs.

MR. ROBBINS: Oh, that's the date of the interview?

THE COURT: Yes, four children. The FMC already
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cleared the date.

MR. TOTI : Vrle11, I apoJ-ogi ze . What ' s the date,

Madam Cl-erk?

THE COURT: The 29Lh at what time? 4:00.

THE CLERK: 4:00 p.m.

THE COURT: After school-.

THE CLERK: January 29Lh.

THE COURT: Any topic areas? The parents are not

supposed to tel-.1- them any questions. Just teII them to tell

the truth again.

MR. TOTI: Just a -- just a

THE COURT: Rel-ationship with parents?

MR. TOTI: I would -- I would just ask t.hat the

chil-d interview review the previous interview, and just go off

of that.

THE COURT: Review prior interview. Relationship

with parents, maybe ti-me share preferences. That gives us

the interview will be happening right away, so that'lI give us

do the parents need any help with the fees, due to their

incomes ?

MR. ROBBINS: WeJ-I, Dad --

THE COURT: With the cost?

MR. ROBBINS: We1I, Dad does.

THE COURT: So I'Il- have 50 percent of fees waived
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for both.

MR. TOTI: And then

THE COURT: Because theyrve got four kids. Itrs

going to be expensive.

MR. TOTI: one small issue

THE COURT: So we'l-1 charge them half.

MR. TOTI: to -- to address to the Court prior to

the June 9th t.rial- --

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. TOTI: Judge at at a previous hearing, you

entered into an order, Your Honor's standard hol-iday

visitation schedul-e f or f or hol-idays, obvlously.

THE COURT: Yes. Spring break, Easter

MR. TOTI: And --

THE COURT: -- President's Day --

MR. TOTI: -- my cli-ent Lhe Defendant. is

indicating that because my cllent doesn't have regular

visitation with the mal-e children overnight, that her

visltation for the hoJ-idays doesn't extend to overnights, and

that's not t.hat's not what the standard hoJ-iday schedul-e

is. And my cl-ient dj-d have overnight visitation with the kids

THE COURT: That was a consideration today, so we

can move Mom to overnights. That's why I asked how the visits
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are going. If there's any major problems

MR. TOTI: There have not been.

THE COURT: she shoul-d be abl-e to go to

overnights.

MR. ROBBINS: Yeah, the prob1em is Dad getting the

children back when they're supposed to be.

MR. TOTI : Wel-1, Judge

THE COURT: We-l-l-, one

MR. TOTI: the issue has been with Dad not giving

the kids

THE COURT: I can enforce that, and two, she's

got proper

MR. ROBBINS: EspeciaJ-1y the daughter

THE COURT: sleeping arrangements for al-l- the

ki-ds

MR. TOTI: She does, Judge.

THE COURT: then she should have the overnights.

Weekends would be appropriate. Dad's still- in charge of

homework for them.

(COUNSEL AND PLAINTIFF CONFER BRIEFLY)

MR. ROBBINS: Your Honor, I'd like to remind you

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. ROBBINS: -- the reasons why she couldnrt have

overnights, and that was
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THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. ROBBINS: -- the extreme violence that was

occurring in her house.

THE COURT: But she's been having day visits since

November, I befieve, or October?

THE PLAINTIFF: Since JuIy, Your Honor.

MR. TOTI : Since JuJ-y, Judge .

THE COURT: August 26th was the last hearing.

MR. ROBBINS: Substantiated CPS reports.

THE COURT: There haven't been any issues. She's

been appropriate wi-th the chil-dren from August 26Lh, 2019,

hearing. That's September, October, November, December,

January, almost five months of zeLo incidents --

MR. ROBBINS: We11, I woul-d say that there's been

zero incidents. Dad has information that her boyfriend has

been physicaJ-1y vj-ol-ent

THE PLAINTIFF: Oh, God. That's --

MR. ROBBINS: -- with the chil-dren, too.

THE PLAINTIEF: -- not true.

MR. TOTI: What evidence of that is there?

THE COURT: Get me that FMC intervi-ew. I don't have

that here.

MR. ROBBINS: Your Honor -- Your Honor, if Your

Honor ' s not wi J- 1j-ng to
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THE COURT: I get these generic allegations

MR. ROBBINS: And that's going to thatrs going to

be part of the i,nterview, as weJ-I, or their rel-ationship,

but

THE COURT: WeII, what kind of prima facie proof do

you have? I mean, is it so bad you call- to cal-l- CPS? Do I

need to get CPS records?

(COUNSEL AND DEFENDANT CONFER BRIEFLY)

THE COURT: They ask about the Mom's boyfriend, but

that's -- it's kind of a general accusation.

MR. ROBBINS: One of the sons took a picture of

something actually happening in in in the action.

THE COURT: The 11 year ofd son, or the nine year

ol-d son.

MR. ROBBINS: The nine Year o1d.

THE COURT: What are they doing taking pictures?

MR. ROBBINS: Because he saw his other -- his

brother getting dragged?

THE COURT: You got that Pi-cture?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. Just trying to find it.

THE COURT: By the boyfriend?

THE DEEENDANT: YEAh.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: Not the first time. It was the
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second time, in the store, too. But I don't have a picture of

the store.

THE COURT: You file that picture?

MR. TOTI: I've never seen it, Judge.

THE COURT: WeIl-, we're going to l-ook at it now.

You can look at it.

THE COURT: That boyfriend stay there all t.he time?

THE PLAINTIEE: Yes, ma'am. And --

THE COURT: He l-ives with you full time, and the

kids

THE PLAINTIEE: Yes. And the the thing that

tends to happen, Your Honor, is the six year o1d, he picks the

six year old up and take him out the store, because he wi-Il-

start to

THE COURT: They get rambunctious.

THE PLAINTIEE: Yes. And I don't -- we

THE COURT: Okay. Let me see that picture '

MR. TOTI: I'm not sure what it's

THE COURT: One thing I can do j-s say no corporal

puni shment

THE PLAINTIEE: There hasn't been, Your Honor. And

what has been happening is the Defendant has been

THE COURT: He's not dragging him. He's iust

showing him out the door or something.
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MR. TOTI: Lifting him, I would say.

THE DEFENDANT: So with his hand on him.

THE PLAINTIEF: Yeah, so --

MR. ROBBINS: There shoufdn't be any physical

contact

THE PLAINTIFF: there is -- Your Honor

MR. ROBBINS: -- between the boyfriend and -- and

the child.

THE COURT: I can -- weIJ-, I can order that, that

you going to have to take controf of that, Mom, j-f you want

these overnights.

THE PLAINTIFF: Your -- Your Honor, this this

THE COURT: I'm making solutions, ma'am.

THE PLAINTIEE: Yes. Yes, Your Honor. Yes. Yes,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: So your boyfriend's not t.o handl-e them,

you are.

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: No corporal discj-pIine. So you can put

him j-n time outs, take away privilege. We'l-l- see how these

overnights are going. But the boyfriend's kind of like, he

can 't he can't physically deal- wi-th them. You' re going to

have to.

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes, ma'am.
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MR. TOTI: So, Judge, just t.o avoid --

THE COURT: So the boyfriend's corporally punish or

physical-J-y discipline on any of the kids

MR. TOTI: We would suggest my cli-ent hook up

THE COURT: Mom can handle that, and Mom wi-]] not

oo, neither parent, both households, no spanking

MR. TOTI: Of course, Judge.

THE COURT: -- no that's 1t.. No spanking. Put.

them in timeouts, and --

THE PLAINTIEF: I take Lhe phones, I take the iPads,

I do that.

THE COURT: Take away priviJ-eges. But if they --

you take away their iPhones and iPads, but if they say, I want

to tal-k to my dad, you can give them their phone, and then

take it back.

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes, ma'am. I do that.

THE COURT: They can make that cal-l-.

THE PLAINTIFF: Or I'Il have them use the house

phone.

THE COURT: And it doesn't seem like Mom is

restricting their phones to bl-ock access to Dad --

THE PLAINTIFF: NO

THE COURT: -- so I'm going to say no spanking, no

corporal dlscipline, no showing them out the door, and the
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that will take care of any concerns.

MR. TOTI: So, Judge

THE COURT: If it continues to happen, and these

pictures keep comi-ng to lightr you know -- but I can see kids

getting rambuncti-ous, you know, and I don't I don't know

what prompted that, that other son to take the picture. But I

I -- we'l-I -- we'Il- deal- with that at at trial. But

they need to go to counseling.

MR. TOTI : So, Judge, then we woul-d --

THE COURT: And both parents are doing their

parenting classes, so there has to be more effective ways of

parenti-ng.

MR. TOTI: We woufd suggest Friday after school-

until- Monday to school-, to avoid the exchanges?

THE COURT: They -- parents don't. like each other,

they don't have to come into contact with each other, but it's

the best way to do it.

(COUNSEL AND DEEENDANT CONFER BRIEFLY)

THE COURT: Yeah, and there's no homework on Friday

nights.

MR. ROBBINS: The problem is, the one time Mom was

responsible for bringing the child to schoof, she dropped him

of f extremely si-ck, with snot al-I over his face.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.
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MR. ROBBINS: And that's the one time that's she's

dropped them --

MR. TOTI: When was that?

MR. ROBBINS: -- to to schoof, and the school- had

to call- Dad.

MR. TOTI: When was this?

THE DEFENDANT: This was the last time took them --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: -- that was the Thanksgiving

holiday.

THE COURT: You know

THE DEFENDANT: Dropped them off, and cal-led me

and text me at 5:00 6:49 in the morning, telling me, you

need to go pj-ck hi-m up, because he's not feeling good. The

school- call-ed me to go pick him up. I picked him up, took him

straight to the doctor. I got a picture right here. You

can't drop him off Like that.

MR. TOTI: And of course and Judge, and

obviously, had my client taken the child to the doctor, the

argument would have been that she didn't take the chifdren to

school-. So I -- I appreciate that, but Your Honor's correct

cal- I .

THE COURT: That's a parent caff. That's a judgment
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MR. TOTI: It is.

THE COURT: Does that make her a bad parent because

she dropped off a kid with a runny nose? And they're not

neither of you are medica1 doctors, so it could be a, you

know, 50/50 calf whether you take that kid to school-. But

it's not Iike you abused the kid. It's not f don't think

it's medical neglect.

And so the parents are just criticizing each other

about how the way they parent the kid, but I'm -- I'm J-ooking

for things like, are you putting the kid in severe risk or

danger? What was the diagnosis at the doctor's? Did you teIl

did you inform Mom you took the chil-d to the doctor? Do

you prefer they caf I Mom first, before they cal-l- You, to qo

plck him up? And j-f they had cal-Ied Mom, she would have

picked the kj-d up.

THE PLAINTIFF: I -- I administered treatment --

THE COURT: Get out of work and go get take that

kid to the doctor.

THE PLAINTIEF: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: They have a school medical nurse who can

evaluate the chil-d's symptoms. A lot of kids go to school

wj-th runny noses. Okay? I'm not taking sides here, but I'm

looking for, you know, severe, grave risk, danger. But what

was -- what was t.he diagnosis? A col-d? Or did that kid have
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severe pneumonia and did he get admitted to the hospital

overnight? That's what I'm looking for. But each criticize

each other in your parenting, and that's why f sent you to

1ike, three or four parenting classes. Okay.

MR. ROBBINS: But, Your Honor

THE COURT: Save that one f or tri-al- . And we'l-l-

bring that kid's medica.l- records. If the doctor just says

you know, did he have an infection? Or or is it just

it's lust a sj-mpIe col-d? Okay. Everybody's on pins and

need1es about being accused, and they're Iooking for things to

accuse them of every single day.

MR. ROBBINS: Your Honor, the the

THE COURT: Yeah

MR. ROBBINS: -- teenage discretlon with the

daughter 1s obvious.l-y not working --

THE COURT: That's not teenage discretion if you

totally cut off the dad.

MR. TOTI: It's not

THE COURT: You need to work on your daughter more

about that.

MR. TOTI: She is having her t.exL

THE PLAINTIEE: I have call-ed -- I had her call him.

He doesn't answer the phone. She's texted multiple times.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.
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THE PLAINTIFE: She even went as far as saying --

THE COURT: She texts hlm? She reaches out?

THE PLAINTIEF: Yes. And she's even said, how are

we supposed to have a rel-ationship --

THE COURT: We'l-1 find out from the chil-d interview.

THE PLAINTIFF: -- when you

THE COURT: So the 29Lh, add another week, and then

cal-1 my secretary for the report.

MR. TOTI: Okay.

THE COURT: You'.1-l- have your week -- your report

like a week after. They just take a week to type 1t up.

MR. TOTI: Okay. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. ROBBINS: Your Honor, Dad just tofd me I

guess the kids are telling him that Abigail's driving. She

doesntt

THE PLAINTIFF: Oh, God.

MR. ROBBINS: -- have a permit or a ficense. She's

15.

THE DEFENDANT: She can't get her permit until she's

15-and-a-half. That's why our boys, every Saturday, they

don't want to go.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: They don't want to go. They wait
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until- I get hal-fway there, oh, flor I don't want to go, because

Abigail be driving. She in the backseat, and Abigail is

driving. She can't drive unt.il- she 15-and-a-half --

THE COURT: And they didn't take a picture of that?

THE DEFENDANT: Because their phones they didn't

have a phone.

MR. TOTI: A11 of these things woul-d have been a

great mot j-on.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. TOTI: AII of these allegations would have been

a--

THE COURT: Yeah, this is high --

MR. TOTI: great motion.

THE COURT: after aII the parenting classes, we

are still in hj-gh conf1ict mode, and that's that's not good

for the kids. AlI right. So I'ff make an order, sj-r. Mom is

not to not saying she is, l-et the child drive wit.hout a

proper permit.

MR. TOTI: Of course, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay?

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Boyfriend's not to, you know, lay a hand

on them. Not saying he did or didn't.

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes, ma'am.
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THE COURT: But you see what's -- what going on?

The kids are at your house, and they're taking pictures. What

can you do? Eval-uate it and, you know, see if 1f i-t

warrants anything. Okay?

MR. TOTI: And, Judge, just so

THE COURT: And so as far as the daughter, You want

to see your daughter, right?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. I haven't I haven't done

nothing to this girl. I yelled at her and screamed at her for

smoking weed.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: Found the weed in the house

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEEENDANT: Found the stuff she use. I yel1ed

at her, turned off her phone

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: and --

THE COURT: And you know --

THE DEFENDANT: the 25th, she got picked up from

school-, and it' s 1ike, I got a phone caf l-

THE COURT: She's acting out.

THE DEFENDANT: she's 15, she has a choice. She

don't have to l-ive with you.

THE COURT: Right.
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THE DEFENDANT: She texted me and told me, oh,

Abigail says if she move back to your house

THE COURT: So who's running your households, right?

THE DEFENDANT: if she come back your house, she

going to kill- hersel-f .

THE COURT: You can't l-et her.

THE DEFENDANT: I said, take her to the hospital-

THE COURT: Since she's living with you, Mom, you

need to back Dad up if he's trying to discipline the daughter.

THE PLAINTIFF: Your Honor, j-t didn't happen like

that .

THE COURT: And second of al-I yeah, because shers

she can go l-ive with Dad tomorrow if she wanted to.

MR. TOTI: She could. And, Judge and --

THE COURT: If she don't like your rules

MR. TOTI: -- Mom has

THE COURT: and now who's running your

households ?

MR. TOTI: -- Mom has

THE COURT: Right.

MR. TOTI: -- made the child reach out several

times.

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE DEEENDANT: Not several times. It's
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THE COURT: So what schedufe

THE DEFENDANT: When we came to Court in December

16th, as we walked out the door, Abigail supposed to be in

cl-ass. Abigail is texting me.

THE COURT: If I said Abigail, you got to go see

your dad on the weekend, you you can controf her?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: A11 r j-ght.

THE DEFENDANT: I mean, it's the same thing.

THE COURT: She got to go with her

THE DEFENDANT: If I got to drop the boys off

THE COURT: dad, then.

THE DEFENDANT: I -- she should be able to come

to me.

THE COURT: Because that's not teenage discretion if

she completely cuts him off.

THE PLAINTIEE: Your Honor

THE DEFENDANT: Because she's

THE COURT: She got to go with her dad.

THE PLAINTIFF: A11 ri-ght.

THE DEEENDANT: -- got I haven't seen her.

THE COURT: I'11 put her on a different schedule

wrth Dad. You want Saturday or Sunday? Take her on the

THE DEFENDANT: It could be the same time, when I
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drop them off.

THE COURT: HM?

THE DEEENDANT: It could be the same time. I'm

dropping the boys off on Saturday from 10:00 to 6:00. It's

THE PLAINTIFE: So you're going to you're

you're not

THE DEFENDANT: it's not right

THE COURT: AIl right.

THE DEEENDANT: it's not fair to me.

THE COURT: Wait a minute. So the three littl-e ones

woufd go with

MR. TOTI: Judge, we -- we just

THE COURT: -- Mom, and you want Abi-gail, reverse in

your househol-d?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: So Dad and daughter can focus on more

time together.

MR. TOTI: Judge, what is the schedule with Nadine

going to be? I was under the impression that. we woul-d extend

the

THE COURT: Friday, Mom wiIJ- pick up the three

l-ittle ones from school-

MR. TOTI: We extended Mom to Eriday to to

THE COURT: Right.
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MR. TOTI: -- Monday.

THE PLAINTIEE: Okay.

THE COURT: But I got to I -- I'm concerned

Abigail is not seeing her Dad.

THE PLAINTIFF: Your Honor, one of the things that

I've tal-ked to her

THE COURT: And if Abigail -- when you're taking

care of the three little ones on the weekends, whY can't

Abigail- can go with her dad so they can work on their

re Iat i onship ?

THE PLAINTIFF: The issue

THE COURT: And Dad will have to control her.

THE PLAINTIFF: True, Your Honor. The issue we're

having is

THE COURT: Yeah. I don't have much time today,

ma'am --

THE PLAINTIEF: I'm sorry, oh, I'm sorry --

THE COURT: I donrt want. yeah. I don't I

don't have a crystal ball.

THE PLAINTIFF: NO.

THE COURT: I'm going to -- we're going to try and

say Abigail, you got to do the -- go with your dad for the

weekend so you can work on the repair on the relationship.

And I can't guarantee she going to crawl out the bedroom
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window and run away to Momts house. Then we then she might

need individual counsefing therapy, why she acting out. She's

acting out because you guys are going through all this

MR. TOTI: So, Judge, just so there's mo more issue

THE COURT: and you two have to back each other

up to get control- of her.

MR. TOTI: -- Mom will have visitation wlth the boys

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. TOTI: Friday after school unt.iJ- Monday to

school. Dad will have visitation

THE COURT: Let's try it this Friday.

MR. TOTI: -- wit.h the daughter Friday to Monday --

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE PLAINTIFE: I'm sorry. Can I'm sorry. The

only reason (indiscernibl-e) she has practice on Saturdays.

THE COURT: They can have Dad Daughter time

MR. TOTI: Viell, Dad will- have to get here there.

THE PLAINTIEF: Okay.

MR. TOTI: Dad can get her to practice.

THE COURT: TeIl her you can tell- her, at at

15 you're not exercising your teenage discretion. That's what

the Judge said.
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MR. TOTI: And, Judge, and the hoJ-iday schedufe

appJ- ie s

THE COURT: So you yeah. If she can't properly

exercise her teenage discretion and make an effort to have

rel-ationships with both of you, then we'11 put her on a

schedul-e. That's how it works.

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

MR. TOTI: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: AII right. And he it's his

responsibility to handl-e her. If she's rambunctious,

rebel, l-ious, he's got to get control of her. But it takes You,

also, to support Dad in saying, what are you doing? Don't

don't be like Lhat, don't be disrespectful. Expect the same

in my household. We'Il- give it a try. Al-1 right. Who got

the order last time. Oh, Mr. Robbins is unbundled. Can you

MR. TOTI: I'Il take care of it, Judge.

THE COURT: -- handle that, Mr. Toti?

MR. TOTI: Of course.

THE COURT: Mr. Robbins will sign off. We start

this Friday.

MR. TOTI: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay?

THE PLAINTIFF: Thank you.
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THE COURT: Al-1 right. Thank you.

(PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 9:39:24)

ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and

correctly transcribed the digital proceedings in the

above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

/s/ Nita Painter
Nita Painter
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CHERYL B. MOSS 

DISTRICT JUDGE 

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. I 

601 North Pecos Road 

LAS VEGAS, NV 89101-2408 
 

 

 

 

DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 

 

 

NADINE ALECIA WILLIAMS, 

 

Plaintiff,        

vs.      

                                                                         Case No.  D-19-586291-D 

                                                                          Dept. No.  I 

HERMAN GEORGE WILLIAMS, 

 

Defendant. 

___________________________________________/ 

 

ORDER SETTING CIVIL NON-JURY TRIAL 

NOTICE: This Order sets forth critical dates and times for important 

proceedings in this case.  It is the responsibility of the attorneys for the litigants 

or litigants appearing in proper person to meet the deadlines and to appear for 

the following required proceedings: 

 

NON-JURY TRIAL DATE: 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2021 at 9:00am 

(stack #2) 

(Non-Jury Trial continued from August 27, 2020 at 9:00am due to COVID-19)  
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CHERYL B. MOSS 

DISTRICT JUDGE 

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. I 

601 North Pecos Road 

LAS VEGAS, NV 89101-2408 
 

The failure to APPEAR for the Non-Jury Trial may 

result in a dismissal of the case, a default judgment against 

the non-appearing party, or other appropriate sanctions, 

consistent with EDCR 2.69. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Non-Jury Trial Brief outlining the 

issues to be addressed at the Non-Jury Trial shall be filed at least three (3) 

judicial days prior to the Non-Jury Trial or unless specified by the Court.  Unless 

all issues have been fully resolved, the failure of one party to timely submit a 

Non-Jury Trial Brief will result in the issuance of sanctions of $150.00. A copy 

of same is to be hand-delivered to the Judge’s chambers and served on opposing 

counsel the same day.  

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that all discovery shall be completed not 

later than thirty (30) days prior to the Non-Jury Trial or unless is specified by the 

Court. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this case will be tried in such an order 

as the court directs.  No continuances will be granted to either party unless 

written application is made to the Court, served upon opposing counsel and a 

hearing held at least three (3) days prior to the time of the Non-Jury Trial. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that both parties shall file updated 

Financial Disclosure forms if there have been any changes to the ones previously 

filed three (3) days prior to the Non-Jury Trial. 
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CHERYL B. MOSS 

DISTRICT JUDGE 

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. I 

601 North Pecos Road 

LAS VEGAS, NV 89101-2408 
 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Judge’s Chambers shall be given 

immediate notice of any settlement or other action which will result in the Non-

Jury Trial not going forward. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any and all Exhibits and Witness 

Lists must be delivered to chambers at least one (1) judicial day prior to the 

Non-Jury Trial for marking. 

DATED this 11
th
 day of August, 2020. 

  __________________________ 

  CHERYL B. MOSS  

  District Judge 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on the above file stamped date, a copy of the attached 

Order Setting Civil Non-Jury Trial to be E-SERVED AND EMAILED to the 

following attorneys to: 

 

FRANK J. TOTI, ESQ. 

frank@fjtesq.com 

Attorney for Plaintiff 

 

KENNETH M. ROBBINS, ESQ. 

FamilyFirst@HalfPriceLawyers.com 

Attorney for Defendant 

       /s/ Suzanna Zavala  

       SUZANNA ZAVALA 
       Judicial Executive Assistant to the 

      Honorable Cheryl B. Moss 
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NADINE ALECIA WILLIAMS,

Plaintiff,

\ta

HERMAN GEORGE WILLIAMS,

The Defendant:

GOPY
EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

FAII{ILY DMSION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

FILED
JAN I 12022

dbAtr)*,
CLERKOFCOURT

CASE NO. D-16-58629I_D

DEPT. I

APPEAL NO. 83263

(SEALED)Defendant.

BEEORE THE HONORABLE SUNNY BA]LEY
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

TRANSCR]PT RE: CALENDAR CALL

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2O2I

APPEARANCES:

The Plaintiff: NADINE ALECIA WILLIAMS (Te1. )

For the Plaintiff: ERANK J. TOTI, ESQ. (Te]. )

6900 Westclj-ff Drive, #500
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
(102) 364-r604

HERMAN GEORGE WILLIAMS (Te1.)
For the Defendant: KENNETH M. ROBBINS, ESQ. (TeL)

9205 W. Russe.l- Rd. , #240
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148
(102) 608-2331
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2O2I

PROCEEDINGS

(THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT B :43 : 12 )

THE COURT: -- versus Williams, D-58629L. Mr. Toti,

if you can please give your appearance for the record and that

of your client.

MR. TOTI: Judge, Frank Toti, bar number 5804,

appearing via video with my client Nadine giilliams who is also

appearing via video.

THE COURT: Al-J- right. I note she's in a car. So

Ms . Wil-l-iams, j ust make sure you' re not driving at thi-s time .

And Mr. Robbins, if you also can give your appearance for the

record and that of your client.

MR. ROBBINS: Good morning, Kenneth Robbins, bar

number 73512, for Herman Will-iams who is afso present on

Bl-ueJeans.

THE COURT: Thank you. This is the time for

calendar call-. We have actual- divorce and custody issues for

February 11th, 202I. Are all parties ready to proceed?

MR. ROBBINS: Yes, we are.

MR. TOTI: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: Al-1 right. And we anticipate this

taking no longer than one half day, correct?
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MR. ROBBINS: I would --

THE COURT: You get you get one half day. So

MR. ROBBINS: It is

THE COURT: -- I -- I shoul-d --

MR. ROBBINS: -- custody --

THE COURT: I should phrase that.

MR. ROBBINS: -- and divorce. Yeah, it is custody

and divorce and t.here ' s f inancial ly, she ' s as well- as

alimony issues and the custody i-ssue is maybe quite complex.

I guess I w111 try my best to have it done in one day -- half

a day rather, but I would not be surprised if we don't get

finished.

THE COURT: How many wj-tnesses?

MR. ROBBINS: I thj-nk on our side we were probably

going to have about three.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Tot j- ?

MR. TOTI: Two or three, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. That's possible. And Irm

assuming that you guys are going to get together and stipulate

to qui-te a few exhibits. So that's going to save some time.

So at this polnt is one haff day, each get 90 minutes.

MR. TOTI: Is the is that a morning setting or an

afternoon setting --

THE COURT: It's a
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MR. TOTI: -- Your Honor?

THE COURT: -- morning. It's 9:00 a.m.

MR. TOTI: Okay.

THE COURT: You have 9:00 a.m. until noon because we

have another court setting at 1:30, but j-f everyone is

organized and we don't waste any time and we get started right

at 9:00, I don't see any reason why we can't get done. I know

that Mr. Robbi-ns and Mr. Toti are both very reasonable as far

as exhibits or whatnot. So make sure those are uploaded into

the system ahead of time. And then have al-I your wj-tnesses

ready to go at at 9:00. They'l-l- be waiting in the

unasslg'ned room just like you guys were waiting earlier and

then we'll- caf I them in one-by-one and we'l-l- hold everything

rn in the breakout session.

Obviously, if we don't have cumulative evidence and

there's remaining evidence to be heard, then we'l-l- take it

from there. But I know both Counsel-s are experienced enough

to be succinct and to make sure that they're not doing

cumu.l-at j-ve testimony.

Pretrial- memorandums, Irm assuming t.hose are coming?

MR. TOTI: Yes, Judge.

MR. ROBBINS: Yes, I believe the deadline was

tomorrow. We'l--1, have ours in by tomorrow.

THE COURT: Perfect. Make sure you exchange aII
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exhibits. Make sure everythingts done. And then I wil-I see

everyone at 9:00 a.m. on

MR. TOTI: And -- and Judge --

THE COURT: IhC 11th. YCS?

MR. TOTI: I apologize. I think -- Itm meeting with

my client tomorrow so I might not be abl-e to get my pretrial

in until Monday. But it'l-I be Monday at the l-atest if that's

al-1 right.

THE COURT: Monday very early at the latest.

MR. TOTI: It would be, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you. AlI right.

MR. ROBBINS: And before we go -- before we go real

quick --

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. ROBBINS: -- while we have everyone here, there

was an issue just this past week or so with registration of a

truck. I just want to confirm that that now is taken care of

and -- and --

MR. TOTI: It is, Ken. Ken, I apologize. My client.

sent me the registration a couple days ago. ft went to my

junk fol-der. I found it. We email-ed -- we forwarded it to

you at about 15, 20 minutes ago.

MR. ROBBINS: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: So it. l-ooks like everything el-se is
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taken care of, no other issues?

MR. TOTI: Not at this time, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. So I will see everyone on the

l1th at 9:00 a.m. ready to go. Thank you so much. Oh

MR. ROBBINS: Thank you.

THE COURT: a.l-so I forgot. You're as far as

Mr. Will-iams and Ms. Williams, you might want to be on

computers if we do show exhibits on the screen. It's going to

be very hard to see them on your cell phone. So just for that

purpose you might want to tal-k with your attorneys about

al-ternatj-ves to make sure that you can see exhibj-ts. We just

happen to have that come up on an something I hadn't

thought about how smal-l those exhi-bj-ts fook on cell phones.

So just

MR. ROBBINS: I'm going to

THE COURT: -- make

MR. ROBBINS: I'm going to have I'm going to have

my cfient come to my office.

THE COURT: Perfect. Thank you. And just make sure

that you have that access. Thank you so much. And you can

al-l- hj-t the red box up at the top.

(PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 8 :47 : 15)
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ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I

transcribed the digital proceedings

case to the best of my ability.

have truly and

in the above-correctly

ent i t led
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PMEM 
KENNETH M. ROBBINS, ESQ 
Nevada Bar No. 13572 
732 South 6th Street, Suite #100 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
(702) 400-0000 (Phone) 
(702) 425-1156 (Fax) 
FamilyFirst@HalfPriceLawyers.com  
“Unbundled” Attorney for Defendant 
 
 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
NADINE WILLIAMS, 
 
     Plaintiff, 
 
                                      vs. 
 
HERMAN WILLIAMS, 
 
     Defendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 
Case No.:  D-19-586291-D 
 
Dept.:   I 
 
Date of Evidentiary Hearing: 
02/11/2021 
Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m. 

 

DEFENDANT’S PRETRIAL MEMORANDUM 

 Defendant, Herman Williams by and through his Attorney, Kenneth Robbins 

Esq., hereby provides his Pre-trial Memorandum in this matter below.  

I. STATEMENT OF ESSENTIAL FACTS 

1. Parties: 

a. Plaintiff, Nadine Williams, 37 years old. 

b. Defendant, Herman Williams, 51 years old.   

2. Minor children:  

a. Abigail Williams, born on October 7, 2004, 16 years old; 
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b. Herman Williams III, born on August 24, 2008, 12 years old; 

c. Matthew Williams, born on May 13, 2010, 10 years old; 

d. Elisha Williams, born on April 26, 2013, 7 years old.  

3. Marriage:  

a. The parties were married on March 2, 2004.  

4. Resolved Issues and Agreed Resolutions: 

a. Both parties wish to be divorced; 

5. Unresolved Issues: 

a. Physical Custody- Herman is requesting primary physical custody of the 

three youngest children, the boys, and that Plaintiff be granted primary 

physical custody of the oldest child, Abigail.  

b. Legal custody- Herman is requesting sole legal custody of the three boys 

and joint legal custody of Abigail.  

c. Visitation schedule; 

d. Distribution of assets and debts; 

e. Child Support; 

f. Alimony; 

g. Attorney’s fees. 

II. CHILD CUSTODY 

Statement of Relevant Facts: 

1. The parties were married in New York nearly seventeen years ago. Plaintiff filed a 

complaint for divorce on March 19, 2019. The parties’ relationship has been 

extremely strained since before the complaint was filed and has not improved 

since.  
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2. Unfortunately, there has been CPS involvement after the Plaintiff had been 

physically abusive to the parties’ daughter, Abigail. It was reported that Plaintiff 

had hit Abigail in the head with a PVC pipe, resulting in a laceration. CPS 

substantiated the report. Following this incident, Abigail was remaining with 

Herman and stated in an interview conducted by Family Mediation Center that 

she wished to remain with Herman. Strangely after having one visit with Plaintiff, 

she changed her tune and has not wanted to return to Herman’s care since. 

Herman believes that the reason she now wishes to stay with Plaintiff is because 

he caught her smoking marijuana and disciplined her for it. Plaintiff allows this 

type of activity.  

3. Due to Abigail’s age, the Court granted teenage discretion for her visitation. When 

that resulted in zero visits, the Court ordered that Abigail spend weekends with 

Herman without discretion. Abigail came for her first visit, however that same 

night she had Plaintiff pick her up and take her back to Plaintiff’s house. Plaintiff 

did in fact pick Abigail up, but not before Abigail was able to swipe the over $1,000 

in cash that Herman had on his dresser which was intended for his rent payment. 

Abigail has not returned to Herman’s care since.  

4. The three boys have been visiting Plaintiff on weekends however many issues have 

arisen. The current exchange time is Monday morning. Plaintiff has been 

continuously late to exchanges and returns the boys without having fed them 

breakfast. This has caused the boys to be late for school numerous times. The boys 

have also complained about Plaintiff’s boyfriend hitting them and other improper 

care in Plaintiff’s home.   

// 
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LEGAL ARGUMENT 

I. CUSTODY 

NRS 125C.002 addresses the considerations of the Court with regards to legal 

custody of a child. It provides, in pertinent part, that “When a court is making a 

determination regarding the legal custody of a child, there is a presumption, affecting 

the burden of proof, that joint legal custody would be in the best interest of a minor child 

if: (a) The parents have agreed to an award of joint legal custody or so agree in open 

court at a hearing for the purpose of determining the legal custody of the minor child; 

or (b) a parent has demonstrated, or has attempted to demonstrate (except that the 

efforts are frustrated by the other parent) an intent to establish a meaningful 

relationship with the minor child. Herman is requesting sole legal custody of the three 

boys. Herman believes that Plaintiff has mental issues which make her incapable of 

making sound decisions. While Herman would be requesting sole custody of Abigail as 

well, because the relationship has been so strained, Herman is conceding physical 

custody of Abigail. As such, Plaintiff will necessarily need to have joint legal custody of 

Abigail.   

Under the new statutes promulgated by the Nevada Legislature, prior to making 

an award of Primary Physical Custody, the Court must first do an analysis as to whether 

it would be in a Child’s best interests to grant Joint Physical Custody. However, 

pursuant to NRS 125C.003, there is a legal presumption that Joint Physical Custody is 

not in a Child’s best interest if a parent has engaged in activities that are deemed 

detrimental to the safety and welfare of a child. Those factors include: 

a. Inability to Adequately Care for Child for at Least 146 Days of the 

Year. 
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This does not apply. 

b. Abandonment.   

This is not an issue.  

c. Domestic Violence:  

Domestic violence has been an issue. Plaintiff has not only been violent with the 

Herman, but also toward the children.  

 
NRS §125C.003(4) provides:  In determining the best interest of the child, 
the court shall consider, among other things: 

 
(a) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and 
capacity to form an intelligent preference as to their custody. 

Abigail inexplicably desires to live with Plaintiff, despite the abuse she has 

suffered in her care. Unfortunately, the reason Abigail does wish to stay with Plaintiff 

is because Plaintiff allows her to do whatever she wants, including drugs. The boys have 

expressed desire to live with Herman. 

 
(b) Any nomination by a parent or a guardian for the child. 
 
This does not apply.  

(c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent 
associations and a continuing relationship with the noncustodial 
parent. 
 
Plaintiff has taken numerous actions which would lend itself to a finding that 

Plaintiff would not allow frequent associations if granted custody. Most importantly is 

what has occurred with Abigail. Once Abigail went to stay with Plaintiff one time, she 

has essentially not returned to Herman.  

 
(d) The level of conflict between the parents. 
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The level of conflict is extremely high. Plaintiff has exacerbated the level of conflict 

with her actions. During one exchange, Plaintiff came to Herman’s apartment complex 

and parked her car in front of the security gate, refusing to move. Not only could Herman 

not leave, but none of Herman’s neighbors were able to leave the complex either.  

Another example of Plaintiff’s games which have increased conflict is her actions 

taken in regards to the parties’ truck. Herman is a tow tuck driver and needs his truck to 

make money. Last year, Plaintiff cancelled the insurance on the truck so that Herman 

would be unable to work. Plaintiff fixed the issue after being ordered by this Court, 

however when the registration was set to be renewed again in January, 2021, Plaintiff 

refused to give Herman the registration card so that he could pay the registration. This 

resulted in attorneys needing to interject and caused Herman to miss more weeks of 

work. Multiple more examples of high conflict will be presented.  

(e) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs of the 
child.   
 
The Plaintiff has not cooperated to meet the needs of the children. Not only is she 

allowing their daughter Abigail to do drugs, she has continuously cause the children to 

be late for school because she won’t cooperate with Herman on the drop off time.  

(f) The mental and physical health of the parents. 

Plaintiff clearly has some mental health issues that are ongoing, however they 

may be undiagnosed.  

(g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. 
 

As stated, Plaintiff has been failing in her responsibility to meet the needs of the 

children.  
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(h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. 
          
The boys are scared of Plaintiff and her boyfriend. They have a close relationship 

with Herman.  

 
(i) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any 
sibling. 
 
While Herman is requesting primary physical custody of the boys and requesting 

that Plaintiff have primary custody of Abigail, the visitation schedule he proposes allows 

the children to maintain a relationship. Herman proposes that Plaintiff have the boys 

every other weekend and that Abigail be in his care during the weekends he has the boys.  

 
(j) Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling 
of the child. 
 
Plaintiff’s abuse towards the children is well documented and will be testified to 

by multiple people.  

(k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking custody has 
engaged in an act of domestic violence against the child, a parent of 
the child or any other person residing with the child. 
 
As stated, Plaintiff has hit Abigail with a PVC pipe as well as hitting the children, 

pulling their hair and kicking them.  

II. Assets and Debts 

The assets that the parties have are derived from their vehicles. As Herman uses 

the 2015 Chevrolet as his primary transportation vehicle and as his means of 

employment as a tow truck driver, Herman should keep this vehicle in his possession. 

This vehicle is paid off in full. Plaintiff shall keep the other vehicles.  

There are debts, mostly medical debts. Plaintiff cancelled the health insurance of 

the children and Herman to be spiteful, which has now resulted in large medical debt. 
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As the debt was incurred due to her actions, she should be responsible for it. Plaintiff 

also has student loan debt that she should incur as she is receiving the benefit of the 

education.  

III. Child Support 

Child support is determined according to NAC 425. As Herman is requesting 

primary custody of 3 of the children and Plaintiff to have primary custody of one, the 

support numbers must be offset.   

IV. Alimony 

Alimony is determined according to NRS 125.150. This is a long term marriage 

where during the course of the marriage, Plaintiff has always been the primary earner. 

Plaintiff earns over $10,000 per month, while Herman earns less than half of that. The 

factors of NRS 125.150 support a significant alimony award.  

V. Attorney’s Fees 

Herman has a basis to be awarded attorney’s fees under Sargeant v. Sargeant.  

VI. List of Witnesses 

                         HERMAN GEORGE WILLIAMS 
c/o Kenneth M. Robbins, Esq. 
HALF PRICE LAWYERS 
732 South 6th Street, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
 (702-400-0000) 
 
Defendant, Herman George Williams is anticipated to testify regarding 
the facts and circumstances of this case. 

 
 
                         NADINE WILLIAMS 
 c/o Frank Toti, Esq. 
 6900 Westcliff Drive, #500 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145 
(702-364-1604) 
 

582



 

Page 9 of 13 
D-19-586291-D 

Defendant’s Pre-Trail Memorandum 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Plaintiff, Nadine Williams, is anticipated to testify regarding the facts and 
circumstances of this case. 
 

 KIMBERLY AVELLEZ 
 4018 Adabella Avenue, Bldg., #4, #204 

 Las Vegas, Nevada 89115 
 (347 360-1832) 
 
Kimberly Avellez is Defendant’s longtime friend and is anticipated to 
testify regarding the facts and circumstances of this case. 
 

 PHYLISS GAYLE 
 4018 Adabella Avenue, Bldg., #4, #204 

 Las Vegas, Nevada 89115 
 (702-354-5420) 

 
Phyliss Gayle is Plaintiff’s mother and is anticipated to testify regarding 
the facts and circumstances of this case. 

 
1. All witnesses listed by any other party to this litigation in its  
      Disclosure of witnesses and exhibits or called at the time of trial. 
 

VII. Exhibits 

VIII. INDEX OF EXHIBITS 
IX.  

X.  
Ex # Description Bates ID Offered Admit Denied 

A 
Dignity Health (St. Rose Dominican-
San Martin) Statement.   

HGW 001 
HGW 002 

   

B 
Emergency Physician Statement, dated 
March 28, 2019 

HGW 003    

C 
Digestive Associates, LLP, statement 
date March 6, 2019 

HGW 004    

D 
Online Information Services (for 
creditor Bessler MD PLLC). 

HGW 005 
HGW 006 

   

E 
Midland Credit Management (For 
Credit One Bank). 

HGW 007 
HGW 008 

   

F Dignity Health Statement 
HGW 009 
HGW 010 

   

G 
Wakefield and Associates (for creditor 
Vituity Nevada). 

HGW 011 
HGW 012 

   

H ARSTRAT (creditor for St. Rose). 
HGW 013 
HGW 014 

   

I Dignity Health statements 
HGW 015 
HGW 022 
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J 
AMERICOLLECT (for creditor 
Radiology Assoc. of Nevada). 

HGW 023 
HGW 024 

   

K 
Emergency Documentation for St. Rose 
Dominican Hospital Siena Campus. 

HGW 025 
HGW 041 

   

L Plaintiff’s passport 
HGW 042 
HGW 049 

   

M 
Invoices and pictures of a Printing Laser 
Cut Machine that Plaintiff purchased. 
The Machine is in Jamaica 

HGW 050 
HGW 066 

   

N 
Department of Family Services, dated 
November 14, 2019. 

HGW 067    

O 
Correspondence dated August 19, 2019 
from Donna Gosnell, LMFT 

HGW 068    

P 
E mail dated November 12, 2019 from 
Gosnell Therapy to Defendant. 

HGW 069    

Q 
Certificate of Title for 2015 Silverado 
Chevrolet. 

HGW 070    

R 

List of the party’s vehicles, and copies of 
the insurance on the vehicle. Also 
including a copy of Plaintiff adding her 
boyfriend to the insurance for the 2009 
Kia Rondo. 

HGW 071 
HGW 079 

   

S 
Plaintiff canceled Defendant’s 
registration for the 2015 Chevrolet 

HGW 080    

T 
Receipt for the 2004 Silverado 
Chevrolet, reinstating the insurance that 
the Plaintiff cancelled. 

HGW 081    

U 
North Las Vegas Victims Information 
Guide, case 19102400000616. 

HGW 082 
HGW 083 

   

V 
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 
Department Contact Card. 

HGW 084    

W 
Eviction Notice to Plaintiff’s mother, 
dated February 25, 2019 

HGW 085 
HGW 086 

   

X 

Application for a Temporary and/or 
Extended Order for Protection Against 
Domestic Violence, filed February 22, 
2019 

HGW 087 
HGW 095 

   

Y 

Application for a Temporary and/or 
Extended Order for Protection Against 
Domestic Violence, filed February 25, 
2019.   

HGW 096 
HGW 112 

   

z 

Application for a Temporary and/or 
Extended Order for Protection Against 
Domestic Violence, filed March 20, 
2019 

HGW 113 
HGW 121 
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AA 

Application for a Temporary and/or 
Extended Order for Protection Against 
Domestic Violence, filed October 24, 
2019. 

HGW 122 
HGW 130 

   

BB 
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 
Department, case LLV 190300131370, 
dated June 26, 2019 

HGW 131 
HGW 133 

   

CC 
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 
Department Property Report, dated 
November 24, 2018. 

HGW 134    

DD 
State of Nevada Department of Motor 
Vehicles, dated May 25, 2019 

HGW 135    

EE DMV for 2004 Chevrolet 
HGW 136 
HGW 137 

   

FF 
Pictures of the Defendant’s trucks that 
he uses for his work. 

HGW 138 
HGW 143 

   

GG  
Request for Records Child Protective 
Services (CPS), dated November 12, 
2019. 

HGW 144 
HGW 175 

   

FF 
Multiple texts between Plaintiff and 
Defendant. 

HGW 176 
HGW 275 

   

GG 

Correspondence from Ravello 
Townhomes to Defendant regard March 
6, 2020 disturbance involving Plaintiff 
and a male friend 

HGW 276    

HH 
Copies of Money Orders that Defendant 
has been paying the IRS 

HGW 277-
HGW 278 

   

II IRS Correspondence  
HGW 279 
HGW 302 

   

JJ 

America First Credit Union statements 
for account Exquisite Roadside 
Assistance ending in 3748 statement 
date of February 29, 2020 and July 31, 
2020 – December 31,  

HGW 303 
HGW 345 

   

KK Taxserv Capital Services HGW 346    

LL 
Credit Collection Services for creditor  
Quest Diagnostics Inc. 

HGW 347 
HGW 350 

   

MM 
Capital One correspondence dated June 
20, 2020 

HGW 351    

NN 
Debt Recovery Solutions LLC dated July 
1, 2020 

HGW 352    

OO 
Pendrick Capital Partners LLC dated 
June 26, 2020 

HGW 353 
HGW 354 

   

PP 
Digestive Associates LLP statements for 
2020 

HGW 355 
HGW 364 
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QQ 
Quest Diagnostics statement regarding 
Mathe, Abagail and Herman 

HGW 365 
HGW 367 

   

RR 
Aargon Collection Agency dated 
October 15, 2020 

HGW 368    

SS 
AMR correspondence dated February 
12, 2020 

HGW 369    

TT 
Midland Credit Management dated 
June 10, 2020 

HGW 370    

UU 
Credit One Bank Credit Card Statement, 
account ending in 0174, September 25, 
2016 – October 24, 2016 

HGW 371  
HGW 372 

   

VV 
Flowsheet Print Request for Elisha 
Williams, February 27, 2020 – March 3, 
2020 

HGW 373 
HGW 378 

   

WW 
Official check and receipt for 2015 
Chevy Silverado, 2021 Registration paid 
by Defendant 

HGW 379 
HGW 380 
 

   

XX 
Request for Admissions, dates 
December 6, 2019 

HGW 381 
HGW 383 

   

YY 
Defendant’s First Set of Interrogatories 
to Plaintiff, dated December 6, 2019 

HGW 384 
HGW 391 

   

Financial Disclosure Form Filing Dates:  

a. Plaintiff: 08/19/2020 – Plaintiff’s counsel has informed me that an 

updated FDF will be filed 

b. Defendant: 02/04/2021 

XI. Unusual Issues 

None 

XII. Length of Trial 

This trial is scheduled for ½ day, however counsel believes it will take longer. 

Respectfully submitted this __8__ day of February, 2021. 
 
 
      _/s/Kenneth M. Robbins_________ 

 Kenneth Robbins, Esq. 
      Nevada Bar No.: 13572 
      Attorney for Defendant 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
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I hereby certify that on the 8th day of February, 2021, the foregoing 

DEFENDANT’S PRE TRIAL MEMORANDUM was served by electronic service via the 

Eighth Judicial District Court E-Filing System to the following at their last known 

addresses: 

FRANK TOTI, Esq. 
marie@fjtesq.com 
frank@fjtesq.com 
Counsel for Plaintiff 
 
      Dated this 8th day of February, 2021. 
 
 
      /s/Ariana Centeno    
      Legal Assistant 
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